

\*\*\*\* Bill No. \*\*\*\*

Introduced By \*\*\*\*\*

By Request of the \*\*\*\*\*

A Bill for an Act entitled: "An Act generally revising laws related to the board of pardons and parole; revising the board's size and structure; providing the board is a full-time board; prohibiting a board designee from performing certain acts; revising the length of time a board member may order a prisoner to serve before another hearing or review after a parole denial; revising when the board may assign conditions of parole; revising the board's rulemaking authority; requiring the department of corrections and the board to collect and report certain data; revising supervision and revocation procedures; amending sections 46-23-103, 46-23-104, 46-23-110, 46-23-201, 46-23-202, 46-23-208, 46-23-215, 46-23-218, 46-23-1001, 46-23-1003, 46-23-1021, 46-23-1023, 46-23-1024, and 46-23-1025, MCA; repealing section 2-15-2302, MCA; providing a transition schedule; providing effective dates; and providing an applicability date."

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Montana:

NEW SECTION.    **Section 1. Montana board of pardons and parole -- composition and qualifications -- allocation -- quasi-judicial.**

- (1) There is a board of pardons and parole.
  - (2) The board consists of three full-time members.
    - (a) One member must be an enrolled member of a state-recognized

or federally recognized Indian tribe located within the boundaries of the state of Montana. The tribal member may not be required to hear and act on all American Indian applications before the board.

(b) One member must be a mental health professional as defined in 53-21-102.

(c) The governor shall attempt to establish geographic balance among board members.

(3) Board members must:

(a) have knowledge of American Indian culture and problems gained through training as required by rules adopted by the board;

(b) have knowledge of serious mental illness and recovery from serious mental illness gained through annual training as required by rules adopted by the board; and

(c) possess academic training that has qualified them for professional practice in a field such as criminology, education, medicine, psychiatry, psychology, law, social work, sociology, psychiatric nursing, or guidance and counseling. Related work experience in the areas listed may be substituted for these educational requirements.

(4) Board members shall serve staggered 6-year terms. The terms of board members run with the position, and if a vacancy occurs, the governor shall appoint a person to fill the unexpired portion of the term.

(5) The governor shall designate the presiding officer, as provided in 2-15-124. The governor may designate a different presiding officer at any time. If the governor designates a different

presiding officer, the former presiding officer still serves as a board member unless removed for cause pursuant to 2-15-124(6).

(6) The board is allocated to the department for administrative purposes only as prescribed in 2-15-121. However, the board may hire its own personnel, and 2-15-121(2)(d) does not apply.

(7) The board is designated as a quasi-judicial board for purposes of 2-15-124, except board members must be compensated as provided in subsection (9), the terms of board members must be staggered as provided in subsection (4), and the provisions of 2-15-124(1) do not apply to the board.

(8) A favorable vote of a majority of the members of the board is required to implement a policy, procedure, or administrative rule. A favorable vote of the majority of the members of a hearing panel, as defined in 46-23-103, is required to make decisions regarding parole and executive clemency.

(9) Board members must be paid a salary within the pay band, defined in 2-18-101, determined by the department of administration as provided in subsection (10). Board members must receive longevity, expense reimbursement, leave, insurance, and other benefits provided to classified state employees under Title 2, chapter 18, and must receive pay adjustments consistent with those required by the legislature for state employees in 2-18-303 and 2-18-304.

(10) The department of administration shall determine the appropriate occupation and pay band for the board members in the same manner that it determines the occupation and pay bands for employees in state government pursuant to Title 2, chapter 18.

(11) The governor shall set the salary of the board members within the pay band established by the department of administration.

**Section 2.** Section 46-23-103 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-103. Definitions.** Unless the context requires otherwise, in this chapter, the following definitions apply:

(1) "Board" means the board of pardons and parole provided for in ~~2-15-2302~~ [section 1].

(2) "Department" means the department of corrections provided for in 2-15-2301.

(3) "Executive clemency" refers to the powers of the governor as provided by section 12 of Article VI of the constitution of Montana.

(4) "Hearing panel" means a panel appointed by the presiding officer and made up of two or three board members or, if required by 46-23-104, a hearings officer ~~appointed~~ to conduct parole hearings, revocation hearings, rescission hearings, and administrative parole reviews and to make recommendations in matters of executive clemency.

(5) "Parole" means the release to the community of a prisoner by the decision of a hearing panel prior to the expiration of the prisoner's term, subject to conditions imposed by the hearing panel and subject to supervision of the department.

(6) "Victim" means a victim as defined in 46-18-243."

{*Internal References to 46-23-103:*

*2-15-2302x 7/14, 8/24 }*

**Section 3.** Section 46-23-104 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-104. Board of pardons and parole.** (1) The board of pardons and parole is responsible for executive clemency and parole as provided in this chapter.

(2) The board shall ~~meet monthly at a place determined by the board and at other~~ work full-time and meet in hearing panels at the times and places that the board considers necessary.

(3) The principal office of the board is in Deer Lodge.

(4) (a) The presiding officer of the board ~~or a designee in consultation with the members~~ shall appoint hearing panels and their presiding officers to conduct hearings and to issue final decisions concerning parole and recommendations concerning executive clemency and shall request out-of-state releasing authorities to conduct hearings pursuant to Article IV(6) of the Western Interstate Corrections Compact. The presiding officer of the board ~~or a designee~~ shall attempt to make hearing panel appointments in a manner that ensures equitable distribution of workload among board members.

(b) If a hearing panel consisting of two members is unable to reach a unanimous decision, the presiding officer of the board shall appoint a third member, who may be the presiding officer or a hearings officer designated by the presiding officer, to consider all pertinent information and render a final decision concerning parole or a recommendation concerning executive clemency. A hearings officer may be appointed to a hearing panel in the event of an absence of two of the three board members.

(c) The hearing panels have the full authority and power of the board to order the denial, grant, or revocation of parole and to make

recommendations in matters of executive clemency."

{*Internal References to 46-23-104:*

46-23-110a 8/24 }

**Section 4.** Section 46-23-110 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-110. (Temporary) Records -- dissemination.** (1) (a) The department and the board shall keep a record of the board's acts and decisions. Citizens may inspect and make copies of the public records of the board, as provided in 2-6-1003, 2-6-1006, 2-6-1007, and this section.

(b) The board shall video-record and audio-record ~~all meetings held pursuant to 46-23-104(2) and~~ all hearings conducted under part 2 or part 3 of this chapter or 46-23-1025. A recording may not personally identify the victim without the victim's written consent.

(c) Except as provided in subsection (2), the board shall make video recordings publicly available.

(2) Records and materials that are constitutionally protected from disclosure are not subject to disclosure under the provisions of subsection (1). Information that is constitutionally protected from disclosure is information in which there is an individual privacy or safety interest that clearly exceeds the merits of public disclosure.

(3) Upon a request to inspect or copy records of the board's acts and decisions, the board or a board staff member shall review the record requested and determine whether any document in the file or any content in a video recording is subject to a personal privacy

or safety interest that clearly exceeds the merits of public disclosure.

(4) The board may assert the privacy or safety interest and may withhold a document or redact content of a video recording if the board determines that the demand for individual privacy clearly exceeds the merits of public disclosure or if the document's or recording's contents would compromise the safety, order, or security of a facility or the safety of facility personnel, a member of the public, or an inmate of the facility if disclosed.

(5) The board may not withhold from public scrutiny under subsections (2) through (4) any more information than is required to protect an individual privacy interest or a safety interest.

(6) The board may charge a reasonable fee for copying and inspecting records.

(7) The board may limit the time and place that the records may be inspected or copied. |(Terminates June 30, 2019--sec. 2, Ch. 402, L. 2015.)|

**46-23-110. |(Effective July 1, 2019) |Records -- dissemination.**

(1) The department and the board shall keep a record of the board's acts and decisions. Citizens may inspect and make copies of the public records of the board, as provided in 2-6-1003, 2-6-1006, 2-6-1007, and this section.

(2) Records and materials that are constitutionally protected from disclosure are not subject to disclosure under the provisions of subsection (1). Information that is constitutionally protected from disclosure is information in which there is an individual privacy

or safety interest that clearly exceeds the merits of public disclosure.

(3) Upon a request to inspect or copy records of the board's acts and decisions, the board or a board staff member shall review the file requested and determine whether any document in the file is subject to a personal privacy or safety interest that clearly exceeds the merits of public disclosure.

(4) The board may assert the privacy or safety interest and may withhold a document if the board determines that the demand for individual privacy clearly exceeds the merits of public disclosure or if the document's contents would compromise the safety, order, or security of a facility or the safety of facility personnel, a member of the public, or an inmate of the facility if disclosed.

(5) The board may not withhold from public scrutiny under subsections (2) through (4) any more information than is required to protect an individual privacy interest or a safety interest.

(6) The board may charge a reasonable fee for copying and inspecting records.

(7) The board may limit the time and place that the records may be inspected or copied."

{Internal References to 46-23-110: None.}

**Section 5.** Section 46-23-201 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-201. Prisoners eligible for nonmedical parole --- rulemaking.** (1) Subject to the restrictions contained in subsections (2) through (4) and the parole criteria in 46-23-208, the board may



release on nonmedical parole by appropriate order any person who is:

(a) confined in a state prison;

(b) sentenced to the state prison and confined in a prerelease center;

(c) sentenced to prison as an adult pursuant to 41-5-206 and confined in a youth correctional facility;

(d) sentenced to be committed to the custody of the director of the department of public health and human services as provided in 46-14-312 and confined in the Montana state hospital, the Montana developmental center, or the Montana mental health nursing care center.

(2) Persons under sentence of death, persons sentenced to the department who have been placed by the department in a state prison temporarily for assessment or sanctioning, and persons serving sentences imposed under 46-18-202(2) or 46-18-219 may not be granted a nonmedical parole.

(3) A prisoner serving a time sentence may not be paroled under this section until the prisoner has served at least one-fourth of the prisoner's full term.

(4) A prisoner serving a life sentence may not be paroled under this section until the prisoner has served 30 years.

(5) If a hearing panel denies parole, it may order that the prisoner serve up to 6 years if the prisoner is confined for a sexual or violent offense, as defined in 46-23-502, or up to 1 year if the prisoner is confined for any other offense before a hearing panel conducts another hearing or review. ~~The board shall adopt by~~

~~administrative rule a process by which a prisoner may request an earlier hearing or review."~~

*{Internal References to 46-23-201:*

*46-23-217x 8/24 }*

**Section 6.** Section 46-23-202 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-202. Initial parole hearing.** Within the 2 months prior to a prisoner's official parole eligibility date or as soon after that date as possible, the department shall make the prisoner available for a hearing before a hearing panel. The hearing panel shall consider all available the prisoner's score under the parole guidelines and other case-specific and pertinent information regarding the prisoner, including the criteria in 46-23-208."

*{Internal References to 46-23-202:*

*46-24-212x 8/24 }*

**Section 7.** Section 46-23-208 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-208. Nonmedical parole criteria -- information board may consider.** (1) The board may release an eligible prisoner on nonmedical parole only when:

(a) there is reasonable probability that the prisoner can be released without detriment to the prisoner or to the community;

(b) release is in the best interests of society;

(c) the prisoner is able and willing to fulfill the obligations of a law-abiding citizen; and

(d) the prisoner does not require:

(i) continued correctional treatment that cannot be found in

the community; or

(ii) other programs only available in a correctional facility that will substantially enhance the prisoner's capability to lead a law-abiding life if released, including mental health therapy or vocational training.

(2) Parole may not be ordered as an award of clemency or a reduction of sentence or pardon.

(3) For a prisoner sentenced to be committed to the custody of the director of the department of public health and human services as provided in 46-14-312:

(a) the board may require as a condition of parole participation in a supervised mental health treatment program, if consistent with mental health services reentry recommendations by the department of corrections, to ensure that the prisoner continues to treat the prisoner's mental disorder; and

(b) parole may be revoked if a prisoner fails to comply with the terms of a supervised mental health treatment program described in subsection (3)(a), in which case the prisoner must be recommitted to the custody of the director of the department of public health and human services pursuant to 46-14-312.

(4) In making its determination regarding nonmedical parole release, a hearing panel shall consider all available and pertinent information regarding the prisoner, including the following factors:

(a) the circumstances of the offense;

(b) the prisoner's social history and prior criminal record, including the nature and circumstances of the offense, date of

offense, and frequency of previous offenses;

(c) the prisoner's conduct, employment, and attitude in prison, including particularly whether the prisoner has taken advantage of opportunities for treatment and whether the prisoner is clear of major disciplinary violations prior to the hearing;

(d) the reports of any physical, psychological, and mental evaluations that have been made;

(e) the prisoner's maturity, stability, sense of responsibility, and development of traits and behaviors that increase the likelihood the prisoner will conform the prisoner's behavior to the requirements of law;

(f) the adequacy of the prisoner's release plan;

(g) the prisoner's ability and readiness to assume obligations and undertake responsibilities;

(h) the prisoner's education and training;

(i) the prisoner's family status and whether the prisoner has relatives who display an interest or whether the prisoner has other close and constructive associations in the community;

(j) the prisoner's employment history and occupational skills and the stability of the prisoner's past employment;

(k) the type of residence, neighborhood, or community in which the prisoner plans to live;

(l) the prisoner's past use of chemicals, including alcohol, and past habitual or abusive use of chemicals;

(m) the prisoner's mental health needs and ~~physical makeup~~;

(n) the prisoner's attitude toward law and authority;

(o) the prisoner's behavior and attitude during any previous experience of supervision and the recency of the supervision;

(p) written or oral statements from criminal justice authorities or any other interested person or the interested person's legal representative, including written or oral statements from a victim regarding the effects of the crime on the victim. A victim's statement may also include but is not limited to the circumstances surrounding the crime, the manner in which the crime was committed, and the victim's opinion as to whether the offender should be paroled.

(q) whether parole at this time would diminish the seriousness of the offense; and

(r) any and all other factors that the hearing panel determines to be relevant.

(5) A victim's statement may be kept confidential."

{Internal References to 46-23-208:

46-23-201x 46-23-202x 8/24 }

**Section 8.** Section 46-23-215 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-215. Conditions of parole.** (1) A prisoner while on parole remains in the legal custody of the department but is subject to the orders of the board.

(2) (a) When a hearing panel issues an order for parole, the order must recite the conditions of parole. The hearing panel shall consider the parole guidelines governing conditions and the parole plan provided by the department before imposing conditions of parole to address the prisoner's criminogenic factors. If restitution was

imposed as part of the sentence under 46-18-201, the order of parole must contain a condition to pay restitution to the victim. The prisoner may not be paroled until the prisoner provides a biological sample for purposes of Title 44, chapter 6, part 1, if the prisoner has not already done so under 44-6-103 and if the prisoner was convicted of, or was found under 41-5-1502 to have committed, a sexual offense or violent offense.

(b) The board may require the prisoner convicted of a sexual offense to refrain from direct or indirect contact with a victim of the crime or with an immediate family member of the victim. If a victim or an immediate family member requests that the prisoner not contact the victim or immediate family member, the board shall require the prisoner to refrain from contact with the victim or immediate family member. If the victim is a minor, a parent or guardian of the victim may make the request on the victim's behalf.

(c) An order for parole or any parole agreement signed by a prisoner may contain a clause waiving extradition.

(3) Whenever a hearing panel grants a parole to a prisoner on the condition that the prisoner obtain employment or secure suitable living arrangements or on any other condition that is difficult to fulfill while incarcerated, the hearing panel or the presiding officer of the board ~~or a designee~~ may grant the prisoner a furlough, not to exceed two consecutive 10-day periods, for purposes of fulfilling the condition. While on furlough, the prisoner is not on parole and is subject to official detention as defined in 45-7-306. The prisoner remains in the legal custody of the department and is



(a) parole guidelines to structure and guide parole release decisions and the imposition of release conditions. The guidelines must include, in decreasing order of importance, the prisoner's:

(i) risk and needs levels, as determined by a validated risk and needs assessment;

(ii) participation in risk-reducing programs and treatment;

(iii) institutional behavior as reflected by disciplinary records; and

(iv) offense severity;

(b) a process by which a prisoner who has been denied parole and has more than 1 year before a scheduled hearing or review may request an earlier hearing or review; and

(c) criteria for consideration of conditional discharges, which must include supervision compliance, residential stability, employment stability, engagement in treatment, and other factors indicative of adequate reentry stability.

(4) The board and department shall compile data to validate the parole guidelines after gathering 3 years of recidivism results and every 5 years thereafter. The board may adopt rules to govern the transition to use of parole guidelines. The data collection must start by April 2018.

(5) The board shall annually assess and prioritize in-service training needs and arrange for training to strengthen knowledge and skills needed for case assessment, interviewing, and parole decision-making. Board members, parole analysts, and the hearings officers shall attend the training, as well as other board and



department staff as needed."

{*Internal References to 46-23-218:*

46-23-210x }

**Section 10.** Section 46-23-1001 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-1001. Definitions.** As used in this part, unless the context requires otherwise, the following definitions apply:

(1) "Absconding" means when an offender deliberately makes the offender's whereabouts unknown to a probation and parole officer or fails to report for the purposes of avoiding supervision and reasonable efforts by the probation and parole officer to locate the offender have been unsuccessful.

~~(1)~~(2) "Board" means the board of pardons and parole provided for in 2-15-2302 [section 1].

(3) "Compliance violation" means a violation of the conditions of supervision that is not:

(a) a new criminal offense;

(b) possession of a firearm in violation of a condition of probation or parole;

(c) behavior by the offender or any person acting at the offender's direction that could be considered stalking, harassing, or threatening the victim of an offense or a member of the victim's immediate family or support network; or

(d) absconding.

~~(2)~~(4) "Department" means the department of corrections provided for in 2-15-2301.

~~(3)~~(5) "Parole" means the release to the community of a prisoner by the decision of the board prior to the expiration of the prisoner's term, subject to conditions imposed by the board and subject to supervision of the department.

~~(4)~~(6) "Probation" means the release by the court without imprisonment, except as otherwise provided by law, of a defendant found guilty of a crime upon verdict or plea, subject to conditions imposed by the court and subject to the supervision of the department upon direction of the court."

{*Internal References to 46-23-1001:*

61-8-731 x\* }

**Section 11.** Section 46-23-1003 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-1003. Qualifications of probation and parole officers.**

(1) Probation and parole officers must have at least a college degree and some formal training in behavioral sciences. Exceptions to this rule must be approved by the department. Related work experience in the areas listed in ~~2-15-2302(2)(e)~~ [section 1(3)(c)] may be substituted for educational requirements at the rate of 1 year of experience for 9 months formal education if approved by the department. All present employees are exempt from this requirement but are encouraged to further their education at the earliest opportunity.

(2) Each probation and parole officer shall, through a source approved by the officer's employer, obtain 16 hours a year of training in subjects relating to the powers and duties of probation officers,

at least 1 hour of which must include training on serious mental illness and recovery from serious mental illness. In addition, each probation and parole officer must receive training in accordance with standards adopted by the Montana public safety officer standards and training council established in 2-15-2029. The training must be at the Montana law enforcement academy unless the council finds that training at some other place is more appropriate."

{Internal References to 46-23-1003:

46-9-505x 46-23-1005x 61-8-731x \* }

**Section 12.** Section 46-23-1021 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-1021. Supervision on parole.** (1) The department shall retain custody of all persons placed on parole and shall supervise the persons during their parole periods in accordance with the conditions set by the board.

(2) The department shall assign personnel to assist a person who is eligible for parole in preparing a parole plan. Department personnel shall make a report of their efforts and findings to the board prior to its consideration of the case of the eligible person.

(3) A copy of the conditions of parole must be signed by the parolee and given to the parolee and to the parolee's probation and parole officer, who shall report on the parolee's progress under the rules of the board.

(4) The probation and parole officer shall regularly advise and consult with the parolee, use effective communication strategies and other behavioral change techniques, assist the parolee in adjusting

to community life, and inform the parolee of the restoration of rights on successful completion of the sentence.

(5) The probation and parole officer shall keep records as the board or department may require. All records must be entered in the master file of the individual.

(6) (a) Upon recommendation of the probation and parole officer, the board may conditionally discharge a parolee from supervision before expiration of the parolee's sentence if the board determines that a conditional discharge from supervision is in the best interests of the parolee and society and will not present unreasonable risk of danger to the victim of the offense.

(b) Any of the achievements listed in 46-23-1027(2) must be considered a significant achievement by the board in deciding whether to grant a conditional discharge from supervision to a parolee.

(c) If the board discharges a parolee from supervision, the department is relieved of the obligation of supervising the parolee.

(d) For good cause, the board may return a parolee who was conditionally discharged to the status of a regular parolee.

(e) Subsection (6)(a) does not prohibit the board from revoking the parole, as provided in 46-23-1025, of a parolee who has been conditionally discharged from supervision.

~~(f) If the department certifies to the board that the workload of a district probation and parole office has exceeded the optimum workload for the district over the preceding 60 days, the board may not parole a prisoner to that district office unless it grants a conditional discharge to a parolee being supervised by that district~~

~~office. The department may recommend parolees to the board for conditional discharge. The board may accept or reject the recommendations of the department. The department shall determine the optimum workload for each district probation and parole office."~~  
{ *Internal References to 46-23-1021:*

*46-18-1003x 46-23-1020 x 46-23-1020x }*

**Section 13.** Section 46-23-1023 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-1023. Arrest of alleged parole violator.** (1) At any time during release on parole or conditional release, the department may issue a warrant for the arrest of the parolee for violation of any of the conditions of release or a notice to appear to answer to a charge of violation. The notice must be served personally upon the parolee. The warrant must authorize all officers named in the warrant to return the parolee to the actual custody of the penal institution from which the parolee was released or to any other suitable detention facility designated by the department.

(2) Any probation and parole officer may arrest the parolee without a warrant or may deputize any other officer with power to arrest to do so by giving the officer oral authorization and within 12 hours delivering to the place of detention a written statement setting forth that the parolee has, in the judgment of the probation and parole officer, violated the conditions of the parolee's release. A written statement or oral authorization delivered with the parolee by the arresting officer to the official in charge of the institution from which the parolee was released or other place of detention is

sufficient warrant for the detention of the parolee or conditional releasee if the probation and parole officer delivers a written statement within 12 hours of the arrest. The probation and parole officer, after making an arrest, shall present to the detaining authorities a similar statement of the circumstances of violation.

(3) Pending a hearing, as provided in 46-23-1024 and 46-23-1025, upon any charge of violation the parolee may, if circumstances warrant, be incarcerated in the institution.

(4) A probation and parole officer may authorize a detention center to hold a parolee arrested under this section without bail for 72 hours. Within 72 hours following the parolee's detention, the probation and parole officer shall:

(a) authorize the detention center to release the parolee;

(b) initiate an intervention hearing; or

(c) initiate the revocation process with an initial hearing."

{Internal References to 46-23-1023:

46-23-216x \* }

**Section 14.** Section 46-23-1024 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-1024. Initial hearing after arrest.** (1) After the arrest of the parolee, a an initial hearing must be held ~~within a reasonable time~~, unless:

(a) the hearing is waived by the parolee; ~~or~~

(b) the parolee has been charged in any court with a violation of the law; or

(c) the probation and parole officer authorizes release or

initiates an intervention hearing under subsection (4).

(2) The initial hearing is an onsite hearing but may be conducted via interactive videoconference and must be held to determine whether there is probable cause or reasonable grounds to believe that the arrested parolee has committed acts that would constitute a violation of parole conditions. An independent officer, who need not be a judicial officer, shall preside over the hearing. The hearing must be conducted at or reasonably near the place of the alleged parole violation or arrest and ~~as promptly as convenient~~ within 72 hours after arrest. The parolee must be given notice of the hearing and must be allowed to appear and speak in the parolee's own behalf and introduce relevant information to the hearings officer.

(3) The hearings officer shall make a summary of what transpires at the hearing in terms of the responses and position of the parolee and the substance of the documents or evidence given in support of parole revocation. Based on the information given to the hearings officer, the hearings officer shall determine whether there is probable cause, and then determine whether to initiate an informal violation intervention hearing or to hold the parolee for the final decision of the board of pardons and parole as provided in 46-23-1025.

(4)(a) In lieu of an initial hearing, a probation and parole officer who reasonably believes that a parolee has violated a condition of parole shall consult the department's incentives and intervention grid to determine an appropriate response, and may initiate an informal violation intervention hearing to gain the parolee's compliance with the conditions of parole without a formal

revocation hearing.

(b) A hearings officer designated by the department shall conduct the intervention hearing. The hearing may be conducted by interactive videoconference.

(c) If the hearings officer determines by a preponderance of the evidence that a parolee has violated a condition of parole, the hearings officer shall consult the department's incentives and intervention grid and determine an appropriate response, including whether to:

(i) order the parolee to serve or receive credit for serving up to 30 days detention;

(ii) recommend confinement, electronic monitoring, or day reporting for up to a 90-day period; or

(iii) direct the probation and parole officer to initiate a petition for revocation under 46-23-1025 if the violation is not a compliance violation or if it is a compliance violation and the appropriate responses under the department's incentives and intervention grid have been exhausted.

(5) If the hearings officer recommends a response under subsection (4)(c)(ii), the officer shall notify the parolee of the recommendation and of the parolee's right to instead have the matter referred for a revocation hearing under 46-23-1025.

(6) The provisions of chapter 9 of this title regarding release on bail of a person charged with a crime are not applicable to a parolee ordered to be held in a county detention center or other facility under this section."



{Internal References to 46-23-1024:

46-23-216x \* 46-23-1023a 46-23-1025a }

**Section 15.** Section 46-23-1025 , MCA, is amended to read:

**"46-23-1025. Report to and action by board.** (1) If the hearings officer determines that there is probable cause to believe that the prisoner has violated a condition of parole and directs the probation and parole officer to initiate a petition for revocation, the probation and parole officer shall immediately notify the board and shall submit in writing a report showing in what manner the prisoner has violated the conditions of release and describe the exhaustion of appropriate violation responses according to the department's incentives and intervention grid. This report must be accompanied by the findings of the hearings officer.

(2) Upon receipt of a report, the board shall cause the prisoner to be promptly brought before a hearing panel for a hearing on the violation charged under rules that the board may adopt. The hearing may be conducted via interactive videoconference. If the violation is established, and the hearing panel finds that the violation is a compliance violation and that appropriate violation responses under the department's incentives and intervention grid have not been exhausted, the panel shall notify the department and refer the matter back to the hearings officer. If the violation is established and the hearing panel finds that the violation is a compliance violation and that appropriate violation responses under the department's incentives and intervention grid have been exhausted, the hearing

panel may:

(a) continue ~~or revoke~~ the parole without a change in conditions;

or

(b) continue the parole with modified or additional terms and conditions, which may include imprisonment in a secure facility for up to 9 months.

(3) If the hearing panel finds that the violation is not a compliance violation the panel may:

(a) continue the parole without a change in conditions;

(b) continue the parole with modified or additional terms and conditions, which may include imprisonment in a facility for up to 9 months; or

(c) revoke the parole and may enter an order is ~~it~~ the hearing panel sees fit.

~~(3)~~(4) If the prisoner has violated a condition of release requiring the payment of restitution, the supervising parole officer shall notify the victim of the offense prior to the hearing required by 46-23-1024 and give the victim an opportunity to provide written or oral comment.

~~(4)~~(5) If the hearing panel finds that because of circumstances beyond the prisoner's control the prisoner is unable to make the required restitution payments, the hearing panel may not revoke the prisoner's parole for failure to pay restitution. The hearing panel may modify the time or method of making restitution and may extend the restitution schedule, but the schedule may not be extended beyond the period of state supervision over the prisoner.

~~(5)~~(6) If the hearing panel determines that the prisoner has violated the provisions of release, the hearing panel shall determine the amount of time, if any, that will be counted as time served while the prisoner was in violation of the provisions of release."

{Internal References to 46-23-1025:  
46-23-110x 46-23-216 x\* 46-23-1021 x  
46-23-1023a 46-23-1024a }

NEW SECTION. **Section 16. {standard} Repealer.**

2-15-2302. Board of pardons and parole -- composition -- allocation -- quasi-judicial.

{Internal References to 2-15-2302: 46-23-103a 46-23-1001a 46-23-1003a }

NEW SECTION. **Section 17. Transition.** (1) The seven-member board of pardons and parole, established in 2-15-2302, must become the three-member Montana board of pardons and parole, established in [section 1], on [the effective date of this section].

(3) Within 30 days of [the effective date of this section], the governor shall appoint 3 full-time board members who fulfill the requirements of [section 1] and according to the following schedule:

(a) one member who shall serve a term that ends on the first day of January 2023 and until the member's successor is appointed;

(b) one member who shall serve a term that ends on the first day of January 2021 and until the member's successor is appointed; and

(c) one member who shall serve a term that ends on the first day of January 2019 and until the member's successor is appointed.

(4) The governor may appoint an individual who previously served

as a board member before [the effective date of this section] to a term provided for in subsection (3) or (5).

(5) After the expiration of a term provided for in subsection (3), the governor shall appoint a person to serve a full 6-year term as provided in [section 1]. A member who previously served an abbreviated term may be reappointed for a full 6-year term.

NEW SECTION.    **Section 18. {standard} Codification**

**instruction.** [Section 1] is intended to be codified as an integral part of Title 2, chapter 15, part 23, and the provisions of Title 2, chapter 15, part 23, apply to [section 1].

NEW SECTION.    **Section 19. {standard} Effective dates. (1)**

Except as provided in subsection (2), [this act] is effective January 1, 2018.

(2) [Section 9] is effective on passage and approval.

NEW SECTION.    **Section 20. {standard} Applicability.** [This

act] applies to hearings conducted under Title 46, chapter 23, part 2 or part 3, and parole supervision and revocation hearings conducted under Title 46, chapter 23, part 10, on or after [the effective date of this section].

- END -

{Name :        Rachel J. Weiss  
Title :        Research Analyst  
Agency :      Legislative Services Division  
Phone :        406-444-5367  
  
E-Mail :        rweiss@mt.gov}